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Plus Dane Housing Group Limited
rinancial Statements for the year ended 31 Mareh Z011

(Chairman's statement

The 201011 financial year has represented another successful year as the group continues o conselidate
the governance and operational arrangements whilst contnuing o grow and develop the business.

COne of the symificant changes during the year involved a formal amalgamation of the three repistered
social landlords operating across Merseyside into a single entty that have combined as an Industdal and
Provident Society company with charitable stanss, The theee howsing providers in Merseyside, C15
Housing  Association, New Generaton Housing Association and  Greater Hormby homes  were
amalgamated on 260 July 2010 and will further streamline and strengthen the operations of the gronp for
the benefit of existing and future customers,

This transaction mvolved a significant amount of work duning the vear and was undertaken with the full
approval of the key stakeholders, temants and partners that Plus Dane works with o deliver its services.
The process also involved all the members of the three boards and was successfully implemented due, in
no small part, to their contnbation to and co-operation in the process.

The group has also expanded its role in the formation of key stratepic parmership across the growp’s area
of operation ranging from north Liverpool 1o Cheshire, Plus Diane adopts a vadety of roles i the various
partnerships from facilitating some of the partnerships, leading others and then just contrbuting o them
to achieve shared outcomes.

The group has also continued to successfully provide new homes theough the development pasmnership
and has completed an additional 437 properties during the year offering a range of new homes. The group
15 alzo developing plans for the new funding regime for affordable homes in the futere.

The group's excellent financial performance during the year was achieved in a difficolt eeonemic climate
and was based on the strong financal straregy developed for the group and delivered by impressive
teamwark across the Group in managing costs more effectively. Tn these uncermin tmes a strong
financial base is imperative o provide financial stability for the fomre.

The other significant achievement duning the vear involved the expansion of the in-house direct labowr
force by successfully tendenng for the repairs and maintenance function for the Merseyside propertics,
Thiz cxpansion inceeased the number of empluyecs by 41 and the vast majority of the new employees
were transferred in to the group from previous 11-1-.:*:-.1.;!4_15 The most pleasing aspect of this monumental
task was that the service to customers were maintaned during the mobilisation peocess and indeed the
performance measures demonsteate an improvement in service delivery and customer satisfaction since

the process ‘bedded in",

The board has also expenenced changes during the year following the retirernent of Joha Pollard from
the position of chaimman of the Plus Dane parent enory. Joha was instrumental in cstablishing the new
group and led the board to the successes of the past rwo vears. 1 was fortunare to be chosen as the new
chateman for the group following an extensive process and [ am also fortunate to be supposted by the
appointment of Nigel Hodpes as deputy Chairman. Together we are keen to ensure that Plus Dane butlds
on the successes in the recent years 1o ensure the group continues o grow from strengsh to strength to
serve the people in the neighbourhoods where we work even more effidendy in the future and o ke
our Neighbourhood Investor (NG offer to other places it may be needed

vear will be a3 successful as the recent past and thar the group will tackle
iyt and innovatve way.

I am confident that the comu

tor the challenges a fd in

Richard Kemp ! " L
Chairman Plus Dan: I—]uusing Group L/"
Date 22 oy 10




Chief Executive's report

I am pleased with the continuing good financial performance of the Group dunng 2010-11 although as
last vear T continoe to advocate caution in the face of the very challenping economic and social chimate

haintaining a focus on the financial positon of the Group continues o be a key theme whilst continuing
an equal focus on achieving operational improvements that will create increased capacity for the Group to
inwest in the neighbourhoods we serve and work effectively with exsting and new partners.

The amalgamation of the three Merseyside registered providers as well as the expansion of the repairs and
muainrenance workforce are great examples of how the Group has achieved opemtional as well as financial
efficiencies that has contobuted to the Group's capacity to deliver strong performance across the three
key strands of the business of homes, enterprise and neighbourhoods and this i bome out by the stong
[inancial results for the year

Some key numbers from the aeecunts illuminate this poant:. Thes has sees that the:

*  Surplus is up by {2m

s Operatng costs have reduced by £2.5m

#  Investment in Development totalled f47m

o The value of commercial assets rose by £650,0000
.

The Parent organisation was able 1o Gift Aid a payment to itz Chantable Housing Associition
£615,000

In addition the group has ecviewed the activities of the commercial and social enterprise companies
within the group and the actions taken have also conteibuted to the financial performance in the year,
notwithstanding the social eetums that have been achieved from their acovines that conmeibure to the
overall performance of the Group.

The vear has also seen further reductions to the senior executive team to achieve financial efficiencies and
a final smable senior management team structure that meets the groap needs and 1 have been especially
pleased with the eole that the Group has played in generanng a number of key strategic alliances across
Merseyside and Cheshire with the aim of improving the neighbouthoods in which the Group operates.

Clearly a key role for the Group s providing new homes and T am particularly pleased with the delivery
vesults for the year and the willingness of our mamstream lenders to increase their lending to the Group
for this purpose with a new effer of £50m 10 support future development.

Governance across the Group has contmued 1o be exeellent, with the balance of challenge and support
being highly effective. This has been further enhaneed by the inereasing eole thar tenants are |:-L;|:.-i11g mn
scrutinizing the work and furure plans of the Group taking advanrage of oppoensities thar have arsen
during the year that would add to the operanonal and financial swength of the Geoup.  The teansiton
durng the year of the role of Chairman and Deputy Chairman was handled well with the peocess of
appointment further strengthening our hinks to cur tenant involvement areangements.

The accounts and our performance information i this repore take us to the end of March 2011 and
demonstrate that the Group's finandal performance has significantly exceeded the predictions at the star
of the year. The sentor team and Board believe that it provides a strong platform on which to buld an
even stronger and more innovative future for Plus Dane and the people it serves,

P N
;.:,7}_ —

I{-,-n_Pi: Ty

Chief Executive
L NS T
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Flus Bane Houalng Group Limited

Financial Statemants for the year endad 11 March 2014

Operating and Financial Review

COrverview of the business

The Geoup 13 a Neighbouthood Investor providing affosdable homes for rent and shared ownership
throughout Cheshere and hMerseyside, Tt also provides support for vulnerable and eldedy tenants and is
mvolved in regeneration projects within the neighbourhoods and communities we serve.

For the year undes review the Group comprsed six members: Plus Dane (Metsevside) Honsing
Assoctation Limited (formedy CDS Houvsing Association ("CDS"), Greater Hornby Housing Association
{"Homby"), New Generatien Housing Association ("New Gen™j), INclude Neighbourhood Regeneration
{"INclude”), threed Propeny Investors ("three 607), Plus Dane {Cheshire) Housing Association Limited
{formedy The Drane Housing Greoup ("Dane"}), Dane Partnesship Homes, and Plus Dane Housing Group
irsel

Mz Trane l:r‘-{l.‘l‘E-E]'Si.dE:I:_ IMelede, Phuz [hne (Cheshire) and Plus Dane are inmrpnmtl:\.lj as dnduztrial and
I}I:"I'I-irjl'.':ll..‘-l'll ﬁﬂf_i’l_"ﬂ{'F Rl'l.d arc, l.;,]Eh d'IL" |"_'d.1."\'|.'|:fl[l-l all I::If TI'.IGIl.:Id-E'., rl_‘EI_I]:I_[Ed I_‘;'_I,l' |_F||;: Tg_-nm]t Scn_-j:r_-g _-‘|I |_'||]-|r_:.|_-jr_|.- a5
registered socil landlords. threetd and Dane Parmership Homes ave tepistered as mited companics with
Companies House.

On 26 July 2010 CD5 Howsing Associaton amalgamated with Greates Hornby Houzing Association
Limited and New Genertion Housing Association Limited, all members of the Plus Dane Group. U
this date the activities, assers and liabilities of these associations became vested in Plus Dane (Mersevside)
Heuzing Associanon Limited ["Plas Dane Merseyside™). The activities of these assodations will therefore
centinue within the amalgamared society, Plus Dance Merseyside i3 an Industrial and Provident Society
with chantable rules, which was formed to effect the amalgamation.

Amalgamation will enable us to unite the strengths of the three Messeyside associations in the Plus Dane
Group. The amalramation is a great step forward for Ples Diane which enables us to further enhance the
service we provide to our tenanis, whilst ensuring thar we continue to deliver on our commirment o
spending less on munning our business, and putting more investment back into our neighbourhoods, This
will result in financial and nme savings and greater management efficiency and will allow us o inves
turther in the services we provide to residents. It also simplifies our contracts and nther legal
relationships as there will just be one Merseyside stock-holding association in the group.

Objectives and strategies

The objectives and strategy of the Group are set our in a business plan that is reviewed annually and
appeoved by the Board. A summarised version of this document is available on application 1o the

Company Secretary.

The business planning process includes an assessment of strengths and weaknesses, opportunities and
threats which are discussed annually berween the senior management team and the Board. Tt bailds on the
progress the association has made veports on progress made to deliver business objectives of growth,
quality and efficiency and identifies priorities for growth and improvement of aeighbourhoods o deliver
the Plus Dane Neighbourhood Investor business objectives.



Plus Dane Housing Group Limited

Financtal Statemants for the year andoed 31 March 2011

Operating and Financial Review

Plus Dane will eontnoe o delver on the seven Pﬂ:mi.ti-l.rﬁ tade to tenants and wall tArget rosources o
meet the promises miade mn the Neighbourhood Investment and Influencing plans. These are w:

#  Increase investment in existing property

s (Create great places to leee

o Further support vulnerable customers
= Further support resident invelvemens
#  [nerepse creation of local jobs

L]

Increase the supply and chouce oof haoanes

Performance against these objectives is monitored theough the delivery of neighbourhood vestor plans
which have heen drawn up for each of the assoctation’s neighbourhoods,

Financial performance in the period
Income and expenditure account

The following table provides a sunimary of the Group’s resules:

For the vear ended 31 March 2011 20100
£m Lm
Turmuver 55.2 52.4
Operating surplus 11.% LA
Surplus on sale of property L0 1.5
et interest pavable a1 9.1
Surplus for the year 3.7 1.7

Tumover increased in the vear, predominantly due to an increase in rent and service charges of £1.6m,
increase in Supporting People of (236k due the award of new contracts, increased development income
of {147k and increased sales of property of £1.2m. Overheads were managed wathin budger and the
Group delivered on efliciency targets set as part of the budget process. Low interest mates mean that
despite borrowing more, the Group actually paid less mterest this year. Tn addition, the amalgamation of
the Memseyside Associations into an Association with charitable starus has led to the release of a deferred

tax liability of £631k and a further writchack of corporation tax of L#30k contnbutng £1,061k 1n total
the surplus for the year.

The group also delivered efficiency savings of (600k in addition o those already set wathin the budget. In
accordanee with the financial strategy these savings were split theee ways, berween staff, the company and

tenants. The tenants have come topether to put topether an mvestment plan to spend the {200k as they
wish within their neighbourhonds.



Financinl Statemants for the yoar ended 31 March 2011

Operating and Financial Review

Balance Sheet

Ag at 31 March 2011 2010
£m L£m

Tangible fixed assens 2437 217.6
Met Current assets 34 LR

Loans due alter one vear 2544 2161
Pension peovision 6.7 £5.7
Reserves:

Income and expendimre 100 (22)
Oither rescrves )| (608
Total 247.2 2242

[Housing  stock, owned  and
managed (units) 12,188 I6, 144

Crearng ancd mierest cover covenants are funding covenant measures and the Group continues to operate
within the covenant FLLUErEITIes.

The fall in the number of units in management is a result of the completion of the mansgement contract
for Laverpool Munsal Homes where we were managing 4,454 homes on their behalf On 31 March 2011
the management of these properties reverted to Liverpool Mumal Homes. Excluding this stock, 457 new
homes have been added during the year.

Operating Performance in the period
Parent company performance

The Group has continued 1o improve performance overall and has implemented strategies 1o consolidate
strong performance and dove performance up in areas where it is identified as being needed.

The performance reporting for the mam subsidianes covers 12 performance mensures which ase reported
to board on a quarterly basis and which cover governance and financial viability, home, tenant
invalvement and empowerment and value for money. OF the 12 measures | 6 were green, demonsteating
targets have been met in full, 4 were on amber reflecting improvements wward target with performance
anly just Galling short of tanret and 2 were on red indicating 1 symificant improvemsen requirement with
corrective action already underway, Performance in all the red indicators has been investigated and the
Boazed 15 satsfied with the explanations for the dip in performance recorded. The Board 15 confident that
peeformance will eontmue.

Kev indicators that warrant specific mention are as follows:
* retained surplus achieved of £3.74m agamsr a taeget of - £327k (200 1.73m)
* lInterest cover oo LH6% against a target of 11000 (2010 116%0)
= Jobs created/ satepuarded was 313 against a meget of 200 (20040: new for 2011)
e Number of properties on site was 393 against a tasper of 334 (2010; 567)
* Number of properties handed over was 4537 against a target of 334 (2010; 280
® Yo if propertics with a vahd gas safery cerificate only just fell shart of the tarpet of 100% ai
99.68% (2010; 99,15%) with legal action mn place against the outstanding properties
*  In the cuerent climate i is understandable thar our teget of ereating 50 trince and apprentice

opportunines was not mer with 28 such apportunities having been ereated, This is an area that
we connnue to targer and further opportunitics continue to be created in 2011/12
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Operating and Financial Review

Subsidiary companies performance

The |1r.-n"rnﬂmm:r: reporting for the main subsidiaries covers 17 performance measures which are reported
to board on a quarterly basis, OfF the 17 measures for the main subsidiaries, 8 were green, demonsteating
targets have been met in full, 3 were on amber eeflecting improvements toward target and & were on red
inclicating improvement requirement with corrective action already underwar. Performance in all the red
incicators has been investipated and the Board is satsfied with the explanations for the dip in
performance recorded, The Board is contident that performance will continue.

A new measure last vear was the "o of first time fixes on repairs. This stands ar 88% against 2 tagger of
85% and a 2009/10 level of 83%. The repairs tendering exercise which eesulted in the delivery of
responsive tepaird by our own workforce and trested partners has had a beneficial impact on this
indicator,

Customers satisfied with new tenaneies stands at 86.52% against a et of 85% (2000 88%). Combined
with a fall in the number of tenancie: failing within 12 months feom 9.9% o 8.54% with a tacget of 1004,
this demonsteates the success of our commitment o tesidents and piving the skills and supporc to
successiully maintain their tenaney.

Diuring the year customer satisfaction with repairs reduced from 98.1% to BL.8% against a target of
95%.1he major factor behind thes is the use of a different survey approach implemented in quarter 2 using
Voluntas “Rated by Residents”™. Oue vesults are stll better than the top quartile despite this reported
decrease. One of the key benetits of this change in measurement has been the increased ability to manage
feedback from customers m real ime through our customer imson officers.

Particularly plepsing in these difficult times s the improvement in our arrears collection performance.
Current arrears stand at 3.86% against a target of 4% and 2009710 performance of 4.3%. Ths is sull
above the top quartile of 206% but represents an improving trend year on year.

These only represent a snapshot of performance and a much beoader range of actvities are measured, We
continue to develop our performance management framework which is central to they way we do
buzimness.

Risks

A number of key risks exist that may prevent the Group achieving its objectives. The process tor
wdentifying risk is detailed in the internal controls section of the report of the board. The Group has
identificd the folloaing major gisks to the successful achiovement of i objectives:
s Limitations in the availabeity of loan fnance
Changes in Supporting People funding
Funding of forure final salary pension scheme Labilities
Uncertainty follewmng ehanges i government policy and new legislation
Increasing peessure on services from tenants as local authorities cuts stast 1o impact.

- & & &

o  Further downtum in the cconomy

The Giroup has put actions m place as approprate to mitigate these risks as pant of the dsk management
process,



Operating and Financial Review
Investment for the future

The mvestment of this year's excellent financial results is dewiled above. The investment of surpluses for
wvestment i the Group's future financial stability 15 a key tenet of owr fnancial steategy and s of
pacamount importance for all businesses, The mvestment will be i the form of developmens of new
homes, extension and improvement of services, investment in existung stock and regenctation of our
commumties atd neighbourhoods, mvestment in the people we serve as well as out properties. Tt also
helps: protect against unexpected event which is key in the corrent uncertain political and economic
chimare.

Accounting policics

The principal accounting policies are set oot on pages 22-26 of the financial statements. The policies that
are most crfical to the financial results relae o accounting for housing properties and include
capitalisation of interest and development administeanon casts, deduction of capital grant from the cost
af assets; treatment of shared ownership propertics and the caleulation of housing peoperty depreciation.

Housing properies

Ar 31 Mareh 2011, the Group owned and managed 12183 (2010: 16,1440 completed units of
accommodation. The properties were carvied m the balance sheet ar cost (after depreciation and eapiral
BEALIL) of Eﬂi.” onaillecsn (20000 Ligas |'r|.i!|:i|.:|||_':|. Further desatl can be found 1o noie 12,

Chur investment in housing propertics this year was funded through a mixture of social housing grant and
loan finance. The Association's treasury management atrangements are considered below.

Pension costs

The Creoup parnicipates in bwo defined henefi pl;'n,s,jrm schemes, the Soecal ”'!J'.Ei]'.IE, Pension Scheme
("SHPS") and the Cheshire Counry Council Pension Fund (*CCCPS™). Both of these are final salary
achermes, ul-.l-L'l'i.:'lg _[:i:ll.:-d benefits For our siafl. The f'u:rr:mru has contmbuted o the sehemes in accordance
with levels set by the acmaries of between 7% and 29.8%, In addition the Giroasp offers a defined
contribution pension scheme with conmnbution levels of 4.5"% for both employees and employers

Capital structure and treasury policy

There 15 a robust treasury management strategy in place which addresses interest rate eisk, covenant
comphiance, Bnding and liquidity nsk and exposure o connterparties. The strategy is set annually and is
approved by the Board, Management of the loan poritolio is the responsibility of the Managing Director-
Finance and is managed in accordance with the treasury management steaegy and policy. The Group
boreows ar both fixed and I1|:1'.|.r|:||g milerest rabes, Rq__rluh[ u[&da[es O TrCasury ﬂl.':t'l‘-'i!t:f are ﬂ."-'m i thue
Group teeasuary panel.

The Group docs not make use of hedging instruments other than to fix vanable sate debt cither ar the
time of drawdown or following a review of the loan portfolio and market conditions.

The Group’s bomrowings total 2342 million (2000:0214.9million). The movement in loans drawn
represents funds drawn for stock development and improvement. Cash balances at the end of the vear
stoed at £3.9 million (2010 £10.9 million). New debt deswn rotalled £21.6 million (2010:17.1 m'ﬂl.iltm:l.
Interest costs remained static at £9.1 million (200k%] mullion) retlecting the continued low interest
rates, The average mte of mterest paid in the vear reduced from 4.3% 10 3.9%, Gearing for those
members of the group subject o gearing covenants stood ar 32% (2000 46%%) while interest cover
pncrensed o LT 20101 30,
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Operating and Financial Review

The Group borrows prncipally from banks, at both fixed and floating rates of interest. There 15 no limit
imposed on the lewel of fxed interest mare boreoswinge: the Aszocintion 15 alde o hold, A the vear-end,
49.%%% ol the l’_;mup’s borrowings were at freed Faves. Varable mre boerowings are those where the
interest rare 18 fxed for less than 12 months feom the balance sheer date, including any where the
aprecment i3 longer but the bank has the oprion to cancel i this period.

Bank bomrowings in sumimaty:

2011 210

£'000 £

Fized 1192706 07 0
YVanahle 112,771 02019
Tatal Diravn 2047 2327
Asailable facility 3072 i7, 702

The maturity of the Group's borrowings 15 detailed in note 20 of the fnancial staterments.

The Group borrows and lends only i stecling and so s not exposed to currency risk.

Going Concern

The Board has a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources o eontinue i operational

extstence for the forcseeable fumure. It therefore conmnues o adopt the going concern basis i the
preparation of the finaneial statements,

Statement of compliance

In preparing this Operating and Financial Review, the Board has followed the principles set out i the
Statement of Recommended Practice “Accountmg for Registered Socal Landlonds 20087,

W :_'___::__.—\_ﬂ\, lirT__fTJ‘-J

Yivien Cross
Acting Managing Director- Finance

Ry M T A
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Financial Statements

Report of the Board

The Board has pleasure in presenong the report and fnancial statements for Plus Dane Housing Geoup
Limited for the year ended 31 March 201 1

Principal Activity

Plus Dane Group provides affordable homes for rent and shared ownership together with housing
suppart for vulnerable and elderly residents, It also has nrerests in major regeneration projects and
partmerships 1o deliver change to the neighbourhoods and communinies which it serves.

Status

Plus Dane Housdng Creoogr 15 an Induztoial and Provident S{:ci_cn__' jnnnrp::ltnn;q_l vnder the Tndwesieal and
Provident Societies Act 1965, 1t a5 regstered with the Tenant Services Authority as 2 Registered Provider
of social howsing as defined by the Flousing Act 1996

Amalgamation

On 26 July 2010 CDS Houwsing Assocmation, Greater Hoenby Housing Assecaton Limited and New
Generation Housing Association Limited, all of which were members of the Plus Dane Group
amalgumated. On this date the activites, assets and liabilities of thege Associations became vested in Plas
Dane (Merseyside) Housing Association Limited, The actvites of the three associanons have continued
within the amalpamated Assocmtion.

The :mn]g:mrlr'um 18 @1 FEEAL SI0p fearwarnd for Ploz Dane which enables us 1o further enhance the SCEVICE
we provide to our tenants, whilst ensuring that we continue o deliver on our commitment to spending
bess on running our business, and putting more investment back into our neighbouthoods,  This has
resulted in financial and tme savings and greater management efficiency and will allow uz to invest
further in the services we provide o residents.  Iv also simplifies oor conteacts and other legal
relationships as there 15 now ust one Merseyside stock-holding association in the group.

Post Balance Sheet Events

The Board confieny that these have been no events sinee the financial year end that have had a marerial
effect on the financial position of the Associanon.

Role of the Board

The Board comprises up to nine non-cxecutve directors and 13 respomsible for managmg the affairs of
the _".:ssm:iatinn. The present Board members and the exccutive officers of the Association are set out on
page 1. Al of the Board members served throughout the period from the date of incorporation except as
|11|:'||.1:1I-;,|:] (1 e .

The Board meers formally six times a vear for regular business, including approval of the bedget and
business plan. Board members also attend an annual conference o discuss future strategy as part of the
wider Plus Dane Group. Also m attendance ar Board meetings are the members of the Managing Direetor
Team as detailed on page 1. The managing director team are supported in theie day 1o day ronning of the
Aszsocation by members of the Group’s Leadership Team.  The managing ditector team served
throughout the vear except as detailed on page L They hold no tnterest in the Association’s shares and act
as executives within the authomry delegated by the Board.

The Board members are drawn from a wide backpround banging 1ogether professional, commercial and
local expenence. Terms of reference are issued o the Board. Board members act in the interest of the
Association and not on behalf of any interest group.
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Financlal Statements for the year endad 31 Marck

Report of the Board

Alembers of the Board represent the Assocanon on the Ples Dane Group’s group-wade committees: HR
Commuirtee, Group Audit and Serunny Committee and Development Investment Forum,

Group insusance policies mdemnify board members and officers agninst lability when acting for the
Aszocianon,

Managing Director Team

While the Board is responsible for the Association’s overall policy and steategy, management 15 delegated
tar the Chief Executve. The Managing Director Team are the senioe management team appointed and act
as exccutives within the authordty delegated by the Board. They meet six weekly under a revolving
chaiemanship to consider management issues. The meeting is the key decision making forum within the
business.

Corporate Governance

The Brard i committed to the integrmy and accountability in the stewarndship of the Assocabon’s affairs,
The MNational Housing Federaion Code of Govemnance onderpins all matters of govemance. The
Assocttion complies with the Code of Governance except that, to promote a culture of openness, the
Group Audic and Scruting Committee {on which the Association has one representative) meet with paud
staff present.

The Group Audit and Serunny Committee has a protocol with the external auditors, which sets out
policies for determining what non-audit work can be undertaken by the external anditors and procedures
for periodic review and selection of external auditors.

Internal controls assurance

The Board acknowledpes its overall responsibility for establishing and mamtaining the whole system of
internal conrrol and for reviewsng s effectivencss.  Thiz responstbility applies for all organisations
controfled by the Assocaton.

The system of intemal control s designed to manage, rather than eliminate, the sk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and to provide reasonable, and nor absolure, assurance against material misstatement
or lnss.

The process for sdentifying, evaluating and managing the significant risks faced by the Assodaven is
ongoing, has been in place throughout the perod commencing 1 Apel 2000 up to the date of approval of
the annual report and financial statements.

Key elementz: of the control framework melude:

*  Poard approved terms of refereace and delegated authonties for Char's Commuttee, Group
Audic and Scrufiny Committee and Geoup HR Committee

o Clearly defined management sesponsibilities for the dentificadon, evalumtion and contrel of
sigmificant rizks

s Robust strategic and business planning processes, with detailed financial budgets and forecast
e Formal recruliiment, retention, training and develapment policies for all staff

o  [Fziablished awcthonsatoon  aod ;|'|1-]1-mlx:|'| ]1:rl::||::L'v|.|'|.'|ru':= foap ﬁlgl‘li.ﬁ.fal‘l[ new  mitiatves  and
COATTINTens

\ sophisticated approach to treasury management which is subject to external review each vear
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Report of the Board

*  Regular reporting to the appropriste committee on key business objectives, taegets and outcomes
*  Board approved whistle-blowing and anti-theft and cormuption policies

*  Board approved fraed policies, covering prevention, detecoon and reporting of frand, and the
recovery of asscts

*  Hegular monitonng of loan covenants and reguirements for new loan ficilines

A fraud register iz maintained and is reviewed by the Group Audit and Serutiny Committee on a quarterhy
basiz. Durning the year there weee no marters reported in the fraud register,

The board cannot delegate wliimate responsibility for the system of internal contral, bar it can, and has.
delegated authority 1o the awdit committee o regulardy review the effectivencss of the syster of intermnal
control. ‘The board recetves quarterdy reports and copies of the minutes from the Group Awdit and
Scrutiny Committec.

The Group Audic and Scrunny Committee has received the Managing Director's annual review of the
etfectiveness of the syatem of internal control for the Associaton, and the annual report of the internal
auditor, and has reported i findings o the Board.

Statoement of the responsibifities of the board for the report and financial statements

The board 18 eesponisible for preparing the report and financial statements in accoedance with applicable
laer and repulatons.
Industrial and Provident Societies Acts and vegistered social bindlord legislation requires the board o
prepare financial statements for cach fnancial year. Under thar law the board has elected to prepare the
tinancial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepred Accounting Peactice
(United kmngdom Accounting Standards and applicable laws). Under the Industeial and Provident Sociery
legskation the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a
tene ane Bair view of the state of affairs and surplus or deficit of the Association for thar peniod. In
preparing these Bnancial statements, the board are required o
¢ select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
+  make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prodent
® state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards and the Starement of Recommended Practice:
Aceounting by registered social lindlords (2008). have been followed, subject o any materinl
departures disclosed and explamed in the financial staremenis;

*  prepare the financial statements on the going concern basts unless it 18 inappropriate to presume
that the company will continue n business.

The beard is responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy
at any time the financial positon of the group and association and enable it 1o ensure that the Anancial
statements comply with the Industeial and Provident Socienes Acts 1963 o 2002, the Housing Act 1996
(to 31 March 2011}, the Housing and Regeneration Act 2008 {from 1 April 2011} and the Accounting
Requisements for Registered Social Landlords General Determinaton 2006, 1t 1= also responsible for
safeguarding rhe assets of the associaton and hence for mking reasomble steps for the prevention and
detection of trand and other seregralanies,

The boared 1= rl:".é[.lil.'r:l'.ls:il'_'ll.t foar ensuriag that the report of the board 18 prepaced in accordance with the

Statement of Recommended Practice: Accounting by repistered zoctal landlords (2008,

The beasd i respongible for the maintenance and integrity of the comorate and financial information on
the Associanoen’s welsie.
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Report of the Board

Employees

The steength of the associanon lies in the quality and commitment of s employvecs. The association’s
ability to meet its objectives and commitments to its tenants in an cthoent and effective manner depends
om the conmbution of all employees,

As an Inveztor in People, the Geoup provides maining programmes focused on quality and customer
service throughout the association, and secks employees’ views on how 1o impeove services and on
miatters of ComImon Concem.

The Geoup continues to provide information on the Group's objectives, progress and activities through
tepular office and deparmmental meetings and theough its staff newsletter Vibe',

Tenant Engagement

The Board actively encourages tenants” involvement in decision malking by promoting differing methads
and means of tenant involrement, Effective tenant involvement enhances the scruting of the Group.

Three hoard members are tenants. The Tenants Together Forum meets eegularly 1o consider policy and
service delivery issues and commission tenant inspections of the Association’s work, Tenants are also
heavily involved in corporare mitiatives such as the repairs framework tender, and amalgamation working

FrOUpE.
Dhiselosure of information o auditors

The board members and managing directors who held office at the date of approval of this board eeport
confirm that, so far as they are each aware, there s no relevant audit information of which the
Association’s auditors are ungware; and each board member and managange director has aken all the steps
that they cught to have taken 1o make themselves aware of any relevant audit informanon and to establish
that the Association’s auditoes are aware of that infoomation.

Equality and Diversity

The Association is committed to equal opportunites for all its employees, Tt s commirted o fulfilling its
statutory responsibilities with regaed to equality and to the continued promation of equality and diversiry
arross the business.

Investment power
The Associaton's mules permit myestment of monies not immediately sequired 1o carry our its objectives,
as it derermines and is permatted by law.,

Annual general Meeting
The Annual General Mecting will be held on 22 September 2011,

Auditors
A resolution to re-appoint Grant Thoenton LLP as auditors will be proposed at the Annual General
hecong,

Approval
_'Illa'l'rp:_n'm.l by the Board and :-;lgﬂl‘:d o its bvl:i‘.lﬁ.“'-b:.':

\\ f Pt
Alison Carev
Company Secretary
Ll 4.\
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Independent Auditors' Repott to the Members of
Plus Dane Housing Group Limited

We have audited the financeal statements of Plus Dane Housing Group Limited for the year ended 31
March 2011 which comprise the Consolidated and Association Income and Expendineee accounts, the
Consahdated and Associaton Smrements of Total R_:_'cr_'._gﬂi_-;cd Surpluses and Deficits, the
Reconalianions of Movemen: in E':'rvuul:r and Aszocmbon funds, the Consolidared and Azsociation
Balance Sheets, the Consolidated Cash Flow statement and the related notes, The Ananeial reporting
tramework that has been applied i their preparason s applicable b and Unired Kingdom
Accounting Standards (United kingdom Generally Accepred Aceounting Practice)

This report 15 made solely to the associaton’s members, as a bodvy, in accordance with eepulations
nvade under Section 4 of the Friendly and Industral and Provident Socicties Aet 1968, Our audit wosk
has been undertaken so that we might state 1o the association’s members those matters we are required
to state to them in an awditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by L,
we do not accept or assume responsibility o anyone other than the association and the association’s
members as a body, for our audit wark, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of the board and auditors

As explained more fully in the Statement of Board's Responsibilities set out on page 12, the board is
responsible for the prepaeation of fnandal statements which give a true and fair view. Ouwe
respromsibility is to audit and express an opinin an the financial statements in accordance with
applicalile law and Internadonal Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us
to comply with the Auditng Practices Board's (APB's) Ethical Standards for Auditors,

Scope of the audit of the financial statements
A description of the scope of an awdit of financial statements & provided on the APB's website ar

www. fre.ong.uk /apb fscope fprivate.cim.

Opinlon
In our apimion the financial satements:

*  givea true and fair view of the state of the Associatgon's and of the Group's affairs as at 31
bfarch 2011 and of s meome and I;,';I:Fl.','nldll,'l_llj_'t' for the vear then ended;

®  have been properly prepared m sccordance with the Industrial and Provident Sodetes Acts,
L3965 ro 2002, the Housing and Regeneration Act 2008 and The Accounting Requirements for
Regristered Sodal Landlords General Dietermimation 20046,

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in cespect of the followang maters where the Industeial and Provident
Socienes Acts, 1965 to 20002 FOLUEhes Uz Lo Teport to vou i, i e ornion;

a satisfactory system of conrol over wansactions has not been mainmained; or
the association has not kept proper accounting records; or

the financial stacements are not in agreement with the books of account; or

we have nor received all the information and explanations we need for our awdit.

bt ek Ue (10

Greant Thomneon Uk LLP
Ftatutory Auditor, Chartered Accountanis
Wanchester

27 3pelons i
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Flus Dane Hausling Group Limited

Financial Statemonts lMar the year ended

31 March 2011

Consolidated and Association’s Income and Fxpenditure

Account

Turnover: group and share of joint
venture

Lezss: share of joing venture ouenover
Group turnover

Operanng costs

Group operating surplus before share of
joint venture operating profit

Share of joint venture operanng profit

Total operating surplus

Surplus on sale of fixed assets

Giafe Al

Interest receivable

Interest pavable and similar chatges
Share of joint venmre interest pavable
Cither finanee costs

Surplus/(deficit) on ordinary activities
before tax

Tax on  surplus/(deficity on  ordinary
activities

Surplus/ (deficit) for the year

All ameunts relare (o continuing acovites.

The financial starements were approved by the Boand and signed on its behalf onTEBeptember 2011.

Board Member . -
{12 MA0LO ey

Mate

3

39

Ll

&

Group Association
2011 2010 2011 2010
£7000 £7000 L7000 L0100
53,673 52046 -
{494G) {5340
55,177 324106 467 8,148
{43425 (42035 [, 43 (7639
11,752 10377 424 M9
180 228 - -
11,932 10,605 424 2
595 1,512 - -
- - (613) -
57 47 2 2
{9184 (9157 - -
(177) (176) : :
(466 (64T
2,757 2,184 {189 alt
083 (43%) T3 {178)
3,740 1,725 (162 333

Ny ey

Board Member
P e 3

The accompanying notes tosm part of these Anancial statements.

Alison Carey
Secretary

LA
L CA ~ 8 *-\‘



Consolhdated and Association Statements
Recognised Surpluses and Deficits

Group

Surplus for the year

Actuanal gain/ (foss) on defined benefit pension scheme
Unrealised gain/ (loss) on revaluagon of investment properties
Share of joint venture unrealised gain/(loss) on revaluagon of
INVEStMEent Propertics

AmoriEation of acgquisiiion reserve

Total recopnised surpluses and deficits for the vear

Association

of Total

2011

L2000

(21}

3,740
0,382
720

-

13,896

2010
4000
1,725
(8,426)
(LA&TT)

(138)

(8,737)

‘There are no other recognised gains and losses for the Associauon for the vear other than the

surplus /{deficit) for the year.

Reconciliatons of Movements in Group’s and
Association’s Funds
Ciroup Associntion
2011 2070 2011 200
Crpenang dotal funds/ [deficsr) (2208 LK 208 (125
Troal recogmised sorpluses/(deficits) relatmy 1o the year 13,5 (4,737 (162 333
Cloang total funds/ {deficir) 3088 (8,208 i s

Tha :u'-:l:lqu'n.'lu:ril:lg nles fomm pact of these fnancial statemens.



Plus Dane Housing Group Limited

Financial Statemants far the year onded 31 March 2011

Consolidated and Association’s Balance Sheet

Tangible fixed asseis

Heousing propestics
Foctl howsing and other grant

Clther fixed assers

Tnwestmecnts

Shave of joant vennire ERO5ES Q%30TS
Share of jpint venture gross Hatulines
Hosmeluay inizinme

Liess: Zacial housing grant

Current assets

Stock

Properties for sale

Dieheoge: Due within one vear
Diebiors: Due after one vear
Cash at hank and in hand

Creditors:  amounits Blling due within one yeas
Met current asseis, (Habilites)

Tatal assets less current Habilities

Creditors: amounts falloyy dwe afier more than
ane yeat

Provisions for abilites and chacges
Met pension lability

Capital and reserves
Noa-equiry share capaml
Revenuve pescrve
Desygmated reserve
ACUSITON Teserve
Revaluaton reserve

Consolidared f Association funds/ (deficit)

Mot

|".|

12

{1
17
1]
s

10

2

=13

24
5
25
5
25

Gioup Azsociation
211 2010 201 2010
£ron £'onn £ 000 L]
472319 29,606
(247,870 [230.742)
235,049 198,864
18,4670 18,6495 4 439
1,183 1,145 113 113
2443 2584 . -
(3,500 3,522
1,237 1237
1.213 (1221} -
243.6TR 27005 10T 3532
0oz &3 -
4,301 1,554 E
0,13 B35 (] 1,145
3050 LIS - -
3,030 10832 2 934
23,440 27,23 (1 2150
{20,077 3) {20,611} (1.661) (2474
3376 6,625 [1.21) (e
247,254 224,230 4is ok
254,599 216,006
> fid4
G467 153,734
LOREN]TH [LE41] 40 208
131 106 z
1,118 1,139
[, 750y (8,20 k
HER [, 208} di 208
247,254 234350 40 208

=

Theze financial statements were approved by the Board and signed on itz behalf on ESeptember 2011,

Board Member

Date 9 &, 1)
o T W I =

N ey

Board Member
H S OGS

The accompanying notes form part of these inancizl stalements.

B T

Alison Carev
Secretary



Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

Net cash inflow from operating

activities

Retums on investment and servicing of
finance

Interest received

Intercst paid

Interest elenwent of finance lease payments

Taxation:
Taxation (paid) /received

Capital expenditure and financial
investment

Haousing property additions

Sacial Housing Grant recetved

SIHG repaid

Proceeds from sale of housing properties
Proceeds from sale of other fixed asscts
Purchase ol other tmpille fxed assers

Cash outflow before management of
liguid resources and financing

Financing

Leans receved

Loans repaid

Capiral repayment of finanee lease

MNet cash inflow from financing

{Decrease)/increase in cash in vear

Mote

27(a)

o
2Ty

2011
L£/000

57
(9424
63

(47,684
14,220

1,263

O
(34T

21,637

(107)

The sccompanying notes form part of these financial starements

L2000

13,007

(9 430)

(420

(31,790)

(28,552)

21,330

(7.022)

L1000

47
{9,662
(68)

(47,825)
26,017
{93)
304

(324)

17.116
(3,127)

2509

2010

£'000

14,931

{9,683)

Fe]

{19,133)

(13.716)

13,759

22
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Financial Statemeants for tho year ended 31 March 2011

Notes to the financial statements

Legal status

The Associanon is registered under the Industnal and Provident Socedes Act 1965 and 1s

registered with the Tenant Services Authorty as a social landlord
Principal accounting policies
Basis of accounting

The financial statements of the Group and the Assocation have been prepared in accordance
with UK Generally Accepted Accountng Prineiples (UK. GAAP) and in accordance with the
Acoounting Requirements for Registered Social Landlords Generl Determination 2006 and the
Statemnent of Recommended Prciice: Accounting by Registered Socal Landlonds (SORT,
issued in Januaey 2008 I:_F:{']RP 20183,

Basis of consolidation

The Group accounts consclidate the Aceountz of the Associadon and its subsidiavies ar 31
March using merger accounting,

Turnover and revenue recognition

Turnover comprises rental income receivable in the vear, income from shared ownership fiest
mwanche sales, sales of properties built for sale, other services included ar the mvoiced value
{excluding VAT of poods and services supplied i the year and revenue grants eecervable in the
year.

Rentl income i recognised from the point when properties become available for femng
Revenne geants are receivable when the conditions for receipt of agreed grant funding have

bieny met.

Income from first ieanche sales and sales of propernes built for sale 15 recogmised a1 the point of
legral completion of the sale,

Pre-emprion agreement

Properties developed under a night of pre-emption ageeement arve included within current assers
where it is considered probable that the pre-emption nght will be exercised.

Taxation

The chaege for taxanon is based on the surplus for the vear and includes current tax on the
taxable surplus for the vear and defersed tx

Deferred taxation

The payment of mxation i deferred or accelerated because of oming differences betoeen the
treatment of certain iiems for accountng and mxaton purposes. Excepr as noted below, full
provision for deferred taxation s made under the incremental liability method on all mming
differences that have arisen, but not reversed by the balance sheet date.
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Notes to the financial statements

2. Principal accounting policies {continued)

In accordance with FRS1%, deferred tax is not provided for gains on the sale of non-monetary
asscts, if the taxable gain will probably be rolled over.

The recogmition of deferred tax assets s limited to the extent that the Associaton and Groop
nnli-:i'lmlq_'ﬁ minking subficieni taxable :-!1:|r|‘:l|u.‘ar.':i i the future o abesork the eeversal of the
underlving rimmg differences.

Treferred tax 12 mensored o the s cares that arve expected o ap[:-l'l.' in the F-L-:indg when the
uming differences are expected o eoverse, based on rax rates and law enacted or subsrannally
ciacted at the balanee sheet dare.

Value Added Tax

The Group charged Value Added Tax (VAT) on some of its income and is alde to recover part
of the VAT it incurs on expenditure. The financial smtements nclude VAT 1o the extent that it
is suffered by the Group and not recoverable from HA Bevenue and Cusroms. The balance of
VAT payable or recoveralile at the year end 15 included as a curcent liabality or asser.

Interest pavahble

Interest, including ssue costs, = allocated at a constant eate on the carrving amount over the
period of the borrowing, Intercst is capitalised on borrowings o fimance developments o the
cxtent that it accrues in respect of the penod of development if it represents cither;

a)  interest on borrowings specifically fimancing the development programme after deduction
of interezt on Socinl Howsing Grant (SHG) in advance; or

by interest on borrowings of the group a8 a whole after deduction of mreeest on SHG in
advance to the extent that they can be deemed to be financing the development
PO LAITLTIE.

Other inverest payable 13 charged to the income and expenditire aceount in the year,
Pension costs

Contnbutions to the Group's delined contribution penston scheme, the Norwich Union Group
personal pension plan, are charged 10 the profit and loss account in the year in which they
become payahle

The Croup participates m three funded mult-employer defined benefit schemes: the Social
Housing Pension Scheme (SHPS), Mersevside Pension Fund (MPF) and Cheshire Counry
Cownctl Pension Scheme [COCPS):

For SHPS, it has not been possible to idenafy the share of the underying asset and habilines
belonging to the individual participating employers. The income and expenditure charpe
represents the emplover contribution payable to the scheme for the accounting period,
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Notes to the financial statements

Principal accounting policies (continued)

For the MPF and CCCPS schemes, assets are measured at fair values, Scheme habilioes are
measured on an actuanal basiz wsing the projected wnit method and are discounted. at
appropriate high quality corparate bond eares. The net surplus or deficit adjusted for deferred
tax, is presented sepamtely from other ner assets on the balance sheel. A net surplus s
fcc{;gti&ud nn]:.' ter the extent that it s recoveralile by the ':.:!.'I:"II.I-T!'-

The current service cost and costs from settlements and cortallments are charged apainst
operating surpluzes. Past service costs ave spread over the period until the benefit increases vest.
Interest on the scheme liabilides and the expected return on scheme assets are included net in
other finance costs. Actuaeial pains and losses ave veported s the statement of 1otal recognised
grning and losses.

Supporting people

Charges for support services funded under Supporong People are recognized as they fall due
under contraciual arrangements with administering authorites.

Supporting people managed by agencies

Social housing capital grants are claimed by the Group a5 a developer and owner of the
property and incleded in the balance sheet of the Group, The reatment of other income and
expenditure in respect of supported housing projects depends on the nature of the partnership
arrangements berween the Group and it managing agents and on whether the Group carnes
the financial risk. Where the group holds the support contract with the Supporting People
administering authonty and caeeies the financial ask, all the projects meome and expenditure is
inchuded in the Geoup’s income and expenditure account.

Investment propertics

In accordance with B85AP 19 investment properties held for long teem mvestment are revalued
annually ar open marker value as at the balance sheet date.  Valwtons are carvied our by
external valucrs at least every third vear. Properties in the course of development included m
tangible fixed assets are stated at cost or at valuation at the commencement of the development
pluz all development costs incurred subsequendy. Propertes are reviewed regularly by the
Dhrectors and if. in their opiion, there has been imprirment the property is written down o is
valuation, O completon of a development the property is reclassified as either an investment
property or property held for resale as approprate.

The aggregate surplus or deficit ansig on revaliation s transferred to the revaluation reserve
except where a deficir is deemed o represent a permanent diminution in value, in which case it
is charged ta the peotit and loss account.

On disposal of a fAxved asset propenty, anv surplus or deficit calenlated bv comparmygr ner sale
proceeds with book value, 15 included in profit on ordinary activinies before taxation and any
realised revaluanon surplus or defict 1= reclassified, within reserves, 1w the profic and loss
ACCOLL.
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ol Statements Tor the year ended 31 March 2011

Notes to the financial statements

Principal accounting policies (continued)

Ne depreciation or amonisation 15 provided in respect of freehold investment properties and
leaseheld investment properties with over 20 years 1o run. The Directors acknoadedge that this
15 1 departure from the Companies Act, however believe thar i is necessary in oeder to present a
true and fair view in accordance with applicable accountng standards and becavse cureem
values and changes in current market values are of prime importanee rather than the calewlarion
of systematic depreciation. The deprecation charpe i= only one of the factors seflected in the
aniual valuatsen snd cannat be separately quantificd.

Housing propertica

Housing properties are principally propertes available for rent and are scared at cost less social
housing grant and depreciation.  Cost includes the cost of acquiring bind and buildings,
development costs, interest charges incurred duning the development period and expenditure
incurred in respect of improvements.,

Works tor exsting properties are works which result in an merease in the ner renal ineeme, such
a5 @ reduction in future maintenance costs, or result in a sgificant extension of the useful
economie life of the property in the business, Only the diveet averhead coses assaciated with
new developments or improvements are eapitalised,

Shared ownership peopertics aee split proportionally between fixed and corrent assers based on
the element relating to expected fisst tanche sales. The first tranche propaortion is classed as a
current asset and related sabes proceeds included within turnover, and the remaining element is
classed as a fxed aszet included in housing properties ar cost, less any provisions needed for
depreciation or impainnent,

Depreciation of housing propertics

Frechold land is not depreciated. Diepreciation s charged so as 1o write down the net book
value of hl:.lLL""hjﬂg properees Lo thieir estimaied residual value, on a 5|:|;=.'|lgh| line baszis, over thee
estimated useful economie lives in the business. The depreciable amount 5 armived at on the
basis of orginal cost, less SHG and other grants, less residual value (being the actual or
estimated open market value of the land at the date of purchase). The Group’s housing
properties are depreciated over the following penods:

Mew build propertes 1001 years
Rehabiliared propertics Al years

Properties held on leases are amortised over the life of the lease or their estimared useful
economic lives in the business if shorter.
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Notes to the financial statements

2.

Principal accounting policies (continued)
Impaitment

Houging propeenics which are depreciated over a penod in excess of 30 vears are subjecr o
impairment reviews annually, Other assets are reviewed for impairment if there i= an indication
that impaisment may have occurred,

Where there 15 evidence of impairment, fixed assets are wnrtten down to the recoverable
amount, being the higher of the net realisable value or the value in use to the Association. Any
such write dowm is charged (o operntng surplus.

Social howsing grant

Social Housing Grant (SHG) is receivable from the Homes and Commumnities Agency (“TICA™)
and s utlised o reduce the c:‘l}'rjl:ﬂl cioans of hl.:ll.l:c:il:lg projpertes, The amount al SHG vecervalle
iz calculated on o fixed basis depending on the size, locaon and rvpe of housing property. SHG
due fram the Homes and Communities Apency or received i advance i3 meluded as a current
asset or liabdire. SHG recerved in respect of revenue expendimre is credited to the mcome and

expenditure account in the same penod as the expendinaee to which it relates,

SHG 15 subordinated to the repayment of Ioans by agreement with the Homes and
Communities Agency. SHG relensed on sale of a property 18 nomally available to be recycled
and 138 credited to a recycled capital grant fund and included in the balance sheet in creditors,

Other grants

Oither grants are recetvable from local authorites and other organisatons. Capital prants are
utilised to ceduce the capital costs of housing properties, meluding land cosrs. Geants in respect
of revenue expendinure are credited to the income and expenditure account in the same period
as the ﬂ:]wm!iru.ﬁ_- too which they relate.

Properties for sale

Shared cwnership first tranche sales, completed properties for oumnghe sale and property under
construction are valued at the lower of cost and net cealisable value, Cost compnises matenals,
direer labour and direct development overheads.  Met realizable value is based on estimated
sales price after allowing For all fuether costs of completion and dispasal.

Other tangible fixed assets

Diepreciaticn is peovided evenly on the cost of other tangible fixed assets 1o write them down 1o
their estimated residual values over thetr expected vseful lives. No deprecintion s T'nrm-idm] an
frechold land. The principal deprecaton rares applied are:

Freehold office bulding %
Motor vehicles (on a reducing balance basis) 25%
Furnimure and cquipment 100 o 33%



Notes to the financial statements

Principal accounting policles [continued)

Leased assets

Aszets held under Bnance leases are included in the balance sheet and depreciated in accoedance
with the Group's normal accounting policies. The present value of funire renls s shown as a

liability.

The interest element of rental obligations 1 charged o the income and expendinire account
aver the period of the lease in proportion to the balimee of capital repayments outstanding,

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged 1o the income and expendinure account on a
steadghit bne basiz over the lease term.

Investments

leweapments are valued at the bower of cost and net realisable value.
Stocks

Stocks have been valued ar the loswer of cose and net realizable value,
Revenue meserves

Revenue reserves represent the accumulated accounting surpluses of the Geoup,  They are
utiised for wvestment in future capital repairs and improvements to the Group's howsing stock
anal l'LIllt'Lil'Ig_' fosr e III.:II]:‘-‘iIIH projeetz. The Board IE‘_!{LIl:'lr]_'g.‘ roviews (he Eroups overall finaneial
strength and accordingly ageees the appropriate level of reserves eelative o the size of its
development programime and sk capaciry, especially in relation 1o weasury risk,

Designated reserves

A designated reserve = a reserve which has been carmarked for a specific use. The Group
rrntaing dessrnated reserves as follows:

Feenimre/ Equipment Replacement — an amount set aside for the replacement of eommunal
furnishings and other equipment.

The nepghbourhond remnvestmenr  veserve 18 designated to fund improvements i

neighbourhoods deaided upon by tenanes.
Acquisition reserve

The acquisiion reserve represents the difference berween consideration paid and the fair value
of the assets and labilities acquired (negative goodwill) by New Generation Housimg under a
reansler of undertakings, and it = amortised over the estimated wseful economic life of the
Asgels.
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PFlus Dane Housing Group Limited

Finmnoial Statemants for the yeor endad 31 March £077

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

3. Income and expenditure from social housing lettings

Group
Supported
Housing &
General housing for
necids Shared alder Total Toeal
housing ownership people M1 2010
L0000 L] ] 4000 Lo
Reant receivable net of wdentifiabde service
ihiirges 32,840 1,131 6,832 01,803 30,537
Zepvice chorpes receivable AT 125 1 (k89 2085 1,559
Charges for support services 2 - To48 HO A0
Turnover from social housing lettings EXH.10 1,255 84629 43696 4216
Expenditure on social houzing
leftings
Management L85 it 2071 12223 10,7346
Sprvices LiEk 142 1,534 2365 330
Founne and planned osamienance A.a0A a5 XAET 11,0030 100, 5545
Mlajor repairs expendinige .76l 7 723 7 A B, 430
Rent losses from bad debs 138 - 48 156 1)
Supportng people 45 - B4 132 2
Deprecianon of housing properies 1,590 65 1,855 141
Prowisicon for rechazge bad delbts bR LEj] [0} (163 ]
Amertisation of negatve poodwill (21 - (21} (2L}
Operating costs on social housing
lettings 2,570 A T.A0G 3534 33400
Dperating surplus on social housing
bettings 6841 88 423 B 352 4,520
Rt losses from vedds Fhe 212 &1 719 621
211 2010
L2000 L4000
Particulars of turnover from non-social housing lettings
Blarker rented bermng 915 485
Cranuges 112 108
Shops 11k 1

107 And



Notes to the financial statements (continued)

4. Accommodation in management and development
Group

At the end of the year, accommodation in management for cach class of accommodation was as
follons:

Orwmed and managed by the Group

1 20
LUlmies Units
Social housing

General needs housing 1274 9,100
Supporied '|1-e|l.l._-=.ing ] 1.537
Laowsr el o |::|'.:l.-1:||.'|::1|'|||1 41 350
Leaseholder umits: 233 188
Total owned [ 1,800 11,145
Managed for others 123 4482
Managed by others i 323

Mon-gocial housing
Mlarker rented 122% 122
Foxtea care T2 T2
195 194
Total cramed and managed 12184 1o, 144

Under construction
Gieneral needs 547 15
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Directors’ emoluments and expanses

During the year fees of (61,250 (2000: f60,000) were pasd to Board members and expenses paid
amounted to J4, 189 (2010 L4549

The reruneration for the executive diecctors of the Plus Dane Housing Group for the year ended

31 Maech 2001 is detailed i the mble below.

As a member of the Group, the Assocanon bears a charge in respect of the services provided o i
by the members of the group executive director team. 'The charge for the current year amounted e

[28,054 (2000 £67,000).

Basic  Benefits Pension 2m b 1311}
salary in kind  contribution T estul Total
L0 L0 L£000 £000 L1000
K Perry Caroup Chict 121 5 v, 134 150
Exceutive
A Wand Clief Integranon 3 3 6 a7 128
Crfrcer (o July 201100
I Shaw RD = Finance Bl 3 T ug 12
S Deepwell MDD - Development to 24 2 i 11H]
Oactoher 20000,
Acting MO Alersevade
& Lancashie (from
moovember 2006 fo
Jumee 20105
1 Phaltips A0y RFonowledge, B 4 1t 104 104
Tnnovarion &
Performance
 Budden A Merseyside & - - : : i
Lancashire (tn
Chceober 2009,
A Doran ALY — Enterprising A + T 97 1ixd
Merphbourhoods:
Cheshine &
“iaffordshire
G Aluirdes MDD - Enterprising i i 20 111 1064
Meighbsouchoods:
hlerseysade
P Paterson M Theeetl [to fuly 28 2 T A7 10t
il
C Glffihs B Bepeneration sod Hi 4 o b 57
Commercial
Development (from
Meovember 2000
Total 451 32 1A THA 1.0k25

The emoluments of the highest paid director of the group, th-r.- {:ruup th-r:t'J xecutve, excluding
pension contributions weee (120,825 (2000: £ 120,000}, The Group Chief Executive is a member
of the Merseyside Pension Fund. He is an ordinaey member of the pension scheme and no
enhanced or bpu_-ul terms apply. The Group does not make any further conmbuton o an
individual pension areangement for the chief executive.

1 addioon o the amounis shown above, a ol of L28TT0 was |:':|;'|_i|,:| to three dirccrors (A Ward, T
Pattesson and = L'flel_-l'l'-.'.'ve:H::- frar -:!-:||::|:||‘:l|.*1'|r;:|11'-:1|:|. o loss of office ﬁh]l.fn‘rlui-_r' a restructure ol the
1'I'Ii|I.'I.ng'L"‘."I:I|'.'|'|r [Eam.



Notes to the financial statements (continued)

B, Employeas

Group
The average number of employees of the group expressed i full dme equivalents during the year
was:
2011 2010
Mumber Mumber
Hevusing, suppott and care 364 HH
Development 7 40
Addministraten 122 101
513 482
201 2010
L7000 L'000
Emplovee costs
WWagres and galaries 14284 12027
Social secunty costs 1,16t B51
Orther pension costs 1,398 1300
16,842 15,087
Association
"The average number of emplovees of the associaton expressed in full time equivalents duning the
yedar Was:
2011 2010
Mumber Mumber
Adminsraton and development 23 {1k}
am 2010
L7000 £
Employee costs
Wages and salanes 3425 4,293
Social secunty costs 2RO 3206
Ohther pension coss 462 M2

4,176 3,312
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Financial Stataments for the year sndad 31 March 2011

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

B. Employees [continued)

The group participates in three funded mulu-emplover defined benefit schemes: the Socal Housing
Penzion Scheme, h[urs:}:.'ﬁtdu Pension Fuord and Cheshire County Council Pension Scheme.

Social Housing Pension Scheme (SHPS)

Members of the Group participate in SHPS (the Scheme). The Scheme i3 fonded and contracted
out of the state scheme.

SHPS 18 a mult-employer defined benefit scheme. Employer participaton in the Scheme is subject
o adberence with the employer responsibilities and obligatdons as set out i the “SHIS House
Policies and Rutes Emplover Guide™

The Scheme operated a sinple benefit stucture, final salasy with a 1/60% acerual eate, to March
2007, From Apeil 2007 there are three benefit structures available, namely:

o Final salary with a 1,/60% acerual eate
®  Final salary with a 1/70% accrual rate

®  Carcer average revalued eamings with a 1/60% accrual rate

From Aprl 2001 there are a further two benefit stroctures avatlable, namely:

o [inal salary with a 1/8(th accrual mate.
»  Career average revalued earmings (CARE) wath a 1/80th accrual rate,

A defined contributicn benelt stroctuee was oade aradlable from 1 Oetober 2000,

An emplover can eleet to operate different benefit structures for their acove members and their new
entrants. An emplover can only operate one open benefit stucture at any one time. An open
benefit structure is one which new entrants are abile o join.

Difterent members of the Group have elected to opeeate the final salary benefit sroerre as
Fealleys:

e g |60 accmeal cate benefit structuee for active members at 31 March 2007

e al/60% or 1/T0% accrual rate benefit structure for new entrants between 1 April 2007 and

31 March X010y,
® 5 1/80th pecrual race bemefin sorscure for new enteants from 1 April 20010,
®  the option of a detined contetbunon benefit struemire (rom | Cetelser 2010

The Trustee commissions an acneacial valuation of the Scheme every 3 years. The main purpose of
the valuation = to derermiie the financeal prastian ol the Seheme o order 1o detenmine the level of
future contrbutions required, in respect of each benefit structere, 3o thar the Scheme can meet its
pension abligasons as they fall due, Feom Apeil 2007 the split of the ol conmbution rate berween
member and emplover 15 set ar individual employer level, subjeer to the emplover paving no less
than 1% of the rotal contmbanon eate. From 1 Apnl 20010 the requirement for emplovers o pay at
least 3P0 of the rowal contribution rate no longer applics.



far the year sended 31 March 2011

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Employees [continued)

The actuzeial valoation assesses whether the Scheme’s assets ar the valuaton date ave likely to be
sufficient to pay the pension benefits acerued by members as ar the valuation date, Asset values are
calculated by reference o market levels. Accrued pension benefis are valued by discounting
expected future benefit payments using a discounted rate caloalated by reference to the expecred
future Investment retusns.

During the accounting period the Geoup paid conteibutions at the rate of 7% 1o 1L153% in to the
defined benefit scheme. Member conmibutions into the defined benefit scheme weee a1 the rate of
3.2% 1o 0.95%, Emplover and member contmbutions to the defined contmbution scheme are set at
4.5% each.

s at the balance sheet date there were 82 active members of the Scheme employved by the Group.,
The annual pensionable payroll of these members was £2051000 on a consistent and reasonable
basts. The group continues to offer membership of the Scheme to its emplovees,

[t is not possible in the normal course of events o identify the share of undedying assets and
liabilities belonging to mdiadual parncpating employers. Accordingly, due to the nature of the
Plan, the accounting charge for the perniod under FRE1T represents the employer contribution

payable.

The last formal valuation of the Scheme was performed as ar 30 Seprember 2008 by a professionally
qualilied actaary uzing the Projected Unit Method. ‘The market value of the Scheme’s assets at the
valuation date was £1.527 million, The valuation revealed a shortfall of assets compared with the
value of lnbdines of £663 million, equivalent to a past service funding level of 69.7%%,

The financial assumptions underlying the valuanon as ar 340 Seprember 2008 weree as follows:

o pa

. Investment refurn pre-retinement 7.8
¥ Investment retum post-reticement n2
. Rate of salary increases to 3 Seprember 2011 30
. Rate of salary increases from | October 2011 4.7
. Rate of poce nflaton iz
. Pension increases

o Pre B8 GMP [LiF

o Post 88 GLP 1y

& Excess over GLIP 341

Expenzes for death m service msumance, adminisreation and PPF levy aee eluded in the
conte basrson rare.

The valeation was carned oot using the tollowing demographie assumptions:

* Moraliy pre-retcement PA92 vear of birth, long cohort projecoon, minsmum
improvement 1%

e Mormliy post-renrement S1PA vear of birth, long cohor projection, minmum
improvement 1%
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Employees (continued)

The long-term joint contrtbution rates that will apply from Apol 2000 required from employers and

members to meet the cost of fumuee benefit accroal were assessed at

Benefit Structure Long-term joint contribution rate
("0 of pensionable salaries)

Final salary with a 1/60% accrual rate 17.8

Final salary with a 1/70% accrual rate 154

CARE with a 1,/60®* accrual maee 14.9

Final salary with a 1,/80% accrual rate 135

CARE with a 1/808% accrual mage 11.9

1F an actoarial valuanon reveals a shonfall of assers compared to labilivees the Trostee must prepare
a recovery plan serting out the steps to be mken o make up the shorfall.

Following consideration of the results of the actuadal valuation it was agreed that the shortfall of
£663 million would be dealt with by the payment of deficit contmbutions of 7.5% of pensionakble
salaries, increasing in line with the salary growth assumptons, from 1 Apnl 2010 o 30 “in:-pm-m]mt
2020, dropping to 3.1% from 1 October 2020 to 30 September 2023, Pensionable camings ar 30
September 2008 are used as the eeference pont for caleulating these deficit contributions. These
deficit contributions are in addinon o the long-reem jomt contibution rates set out in the table
above.

Emplovers that participate m the Scheme on a non-contributory basis payv a joint contribugon rate
{L.e. a combined emplover and employee sare).

Employers that have closed the Scheme to new enteants ase required to pay an additional employer
eoitributon of 3% to reflect the higher costs of a dosed arangement.

A small number of emplovers are required 10 contrbute at o different rate w reflect the

amortisation of a surplus or deficr on the wansfer of assets and past service liabilities from another
pension scheme into the SHPS scheme.

Emplovers joining the Scheme after | Octaber 2002 that do not teansfer any past service habilities
to the Scheme pay eontributions ar the ongoing future service contribution eate. This rare i3
reviewed at each valuation and applies untl the second valuation afier the date of joming the
Scheme, at which point the standaed employer contribution rate is payable. Contribution rates are
i:]mngu:d om the 1 .";|‘:l|:‘:il thar falls 18 moaths afrer the valuation date,

A copy of the recovery plan, setting out the level of defiar contabutions payable and the pedod for
which they will be payable, must be sent to the Pensions Regulator. The Regularoe has the power
under are 3 of the Penstons Act 2004 to issue scheme funding directions where it believes that the
sctuarial valuation assumpteons and/or recovery plan are inapproprate, For example the Repulator
could require that the Trostee strengthens the actuarnial assumptions (which would inceease the
schemie labilities and hence impact on the recovery plan) or impose a schedule of contmibubdons on
the Scheme dadiech would effec ﬂ\'t]_’_;‘ amend the terms of the FCCOVETY |'||.'|:|:|:|. The TECOVEry F.I_-an fre
the SHPS Scheme in respect of the Seprember 2008 actiarial valuation has been submitted o the
Repulator.



Notes to the financial statements (continued)

G,

Employees [continuad)

The Seheme Actueary has prepared an Actuarial Report that provides an approximate update on the
funding position of the Scheme as at 30 Septernber 2011k Such a eeport i required by lepislation for
years in which a full senuanal valuation is not carried oot The funding update revealed an increase
in the asaets of the Scheme o LEER5 million and indicated a reduction m the shorifall of assets
compared to labidities o approximarely (497 million, equivalent o a past service funding level of
ALY,

Mersevside Pension Fund

The MPF 15 a mula-employer scheme, administered by Wirml Borough Coundl under the
regulations goveming the Local Government Pension Scheme, a defined benefir scheme. The miost
recent formal actuarial valuation was completed a8 ar 31 March 2000 and rolled forward o 31
March 2011 by a qualified independent acmary.

The Group's emplovees participate in the scheme through two admission agreements, the results of
which have been apprepated for the purposes of FRS517. The assumptions used have been
consistently applied to both agreements wathin the APF scheme.

The 2011 employers” contnbunons to the MPE by the Group for the vear ended 31 March 2011
were LR35 (K1) {Elilﬂ: j:.l' 320000 at a contbuton sate of 16-22.8%, r':l"l}unsjn::.un]:rlc saladies, set untl
the next funding valuation at 31 Aarch 2011, From 1 Apei 2081 the contribution sate is set ot 9.8

165",
Financial assumptions

M March 31 Maech

LN | ol
Y I'FEI‘ o !‘||'_'|_'
At AT
Izconnt rate L 57
Future salary increases 4.4 4,75
Futume pension increases 29 35
RIl Intftanon assumphon 34 35
CI1 Intlation assumption 2.5 340
Expected return on asscets
The expected retum on assets were:
2 2010
Yo per Ve pet
ANNUM  @nnum
Equities 5 1.5
Crowvermment bonds 4.4 4.5
Orther bonds 5.1 B3
Property 6.5 03

Cash/ligquidiry 0.5 0.5
reher T3 75
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

6.

Employes Information {continued)

Mortality assum plions
The post retirement mortality assumptions used to value the benefir obliganon at March 2010 and
March 2011 are based on PA92 mec YoB + 2 years for non-retired members and pensioners.

Within the past three years, mvestganons have been caeried out by the scheme acruaries inro the
maertality experience of the Assocation's scheme. These investigations eoncluded that the curvent
mortality assumptions include suthaent allowance for fuee impeovements in mortality rates. The
asswmed life expectations on retrement at age 63 ane:

2011 2010
Current pensioners
- Males 214 years 0.4 vears
Females 24.1 years 3.2 years
Fumre Pensioners
Blales 23 8 years 21.3 vears
Females 25.7 years .1 years
Amounts recognised in the balance sheet:
201 2010
£"000 L1000
Present value of funded obliganons (23,23H) (24,923}
Present value of unfunded obligations =z :
Total present value of benefit oliligations (23,238} (24.923)
Fair value of plan assets 19475 17.375

Unrecognised past semvice cost = .
Dheficit [3,763) (7548




Notes to the financial statements (continued)

B. Employee Information [continued)

Analysis of the amount charged to the income and expenditure account:

201 2010
£ MK £ "0l

Crprrent semdce cost 624 35
ase service ol 34
Loas on settlements &
|"_'{J'|l'|:r1.‘l'_:| FEILIEAT ol F:ll.'mii.un sheme assets |:_]1|_":|]_:| [Flﬁlﬁ.]
[nrerest on pensson scheme lahilities 14335 1.161
Total operatng charpe IR &1

L2000 (2010 L435,000) was charged o the operatng sueplus and £284,000 was chagged (2010
£306,0000) to other finance costs/meome.

Amounts recognised in the statement of total recognised surpluses and deficits

201 2010
£ 000 £ 2000

Acmaanal gain/(loss) in pension scheme recogrmised in STRSD 3504 (3,747

Cumulative acruanal loss recopnised in STRSDD {1,070 (493

Included within the actuarial gam for the corrent vear s £1.6 million selating 1o the governmen's
announcement of on 22 [umnge 2000 than future r}c—ngi:;n incresses woukd be linked 1o CP as P wed
to RPL The Group has recogmised this amount in the STRSD in accoedance with the Urpent
lzznes Task Force (UITE) Abstract 48 as the Directors consider that no consteuetive c.lgrig;;ﬁnn
existed prior to this. As such the resulting prin has been aceounted for as a change in actuarial
aFF“n\Pllﬂ“.

Changes in present value of defined benefit obligation:

xn 2000

£000 L1000

Opening defined benetir obliration 24023 16,2300
Current service cost 624 375
Past service cost - 1
Member contnbutons 247 263
Imterest cost 1435 1.161
Actuprial (gains), Tosses (3042 7,230
Laosses curtailments = &
Benefits paid (349 {396

Closing defined benefit obligagon 23238 24003
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

G, Employee Information [continued)

Changes in fair value of assets:

2011 2000
L 1000 £ O
Fair vablue of assets at beginning of year 17.373 12478
Expected returm on assets 1.151 TS
hlember contributons 247 263
Employer contributions B2 Ta2
Acmartal gains 2 3483
Benefits paid 34 [3904)
Fair valee of assels at end t:f}.‘mr 19475 17375
Major categorics of plan assets as a percentage of total plan assets:
2011 20000
Equitics BT 03.6%%
Grovernment bonds L7 12.1%%
Cheher bomcls 6.7% G.6%
Property 1.0 030
Cash 2.3 % 2.0%
Oither 11.7% . ]
Actual return on plan assets:
Zo11 2010
£ 000 L1000
Actual retum on plan assets 1430 4,278
Amounts for the current and previous four periods are as follows:
2011 ZIF10 009 2008 2007
L0 £'000 £'000 Lo L0000
Present value of defined benefit obligation (23.238) (24923 (16230) (19179 (15,632
Fair value of scheme assets 19475 17.375 12478 14070 13,503
Dhefien on scheme [, 763] (7,248 (3,738  (3,1000 (2,129)
Esperience adjustments on |:‘:||::| lialsilirees 1837 - - - -
Expenence adjustments on plan assers 222 AAH3 (3.53700 - [212%



Notes to the financial statements (continued)

8. Employees (continued)

Cheshire County Council Pension Scheme (“CCCPS™)

The CCCPS s o multi-employer scheme, admimstered by Cheshire County Coundl under the
regulations goveming the Local Government Pension Scheme, a defined benefit scheme. The maost
recent formal actuarial valuation was completed as at 31 March 2000 and molled foraward 9 31
March 2011 by a qualified acruary.

The employer’s contributons ta the scheme by the Group for the vear ended 31 March 2011 were
£403.000 (2010: L395,000 and the emplover’s contribution rate has been fxed as 228% of
pensionable pay from Apnl 2008 and set unil the next fanding valuation at 31 Macch 20003,
Financial Reporting Standard 17

Financial assumprions

The major assumptions used by the actuary in assessing scheme labilitnes were:

2011 20040
e per annum Yo per anmum
Hate of increase i salomes 51 2.3
Rate of increase In pensions n paviment 2R 348
DHzoount eate 5.5 5.5
Expected retum on assets
The expected remurn on assets assumprons weres
2011 2010
% per annum Ya per annum
Equities T.5 T8
B 4.9 .0
Frlqwrt}' 5.5 3.8

Cazh 4.6 4.4



Flus Dane Housing Group Limited 33
Financial Statements for the yoor anded 31 March 2011

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Muortaliny

Within the past three years, investigations have been carvied out by the scheme acmaries mio the
mortality expesience of the Association’s scheme. Life expectancy is based on the SAPS year of
birth rables with the improvements from 2007 m line with the Medium Cohort and a 1% P

underpin. Mortality loadings were applied 1o the SAPS tables based on membership class. Based on
these assumptions, the average future life expectancies at age 63 are summarised below:

Current pensioners 2011 2000
Males 22.9 years 2018 years
Females 25.7 years 24.1 years

Future Pensioners
Mlales 249 wears 22,3 years

- Females 27.7 years 23.7 years

Amounts recognised in the balance sheet

2011 2000
£7000 £,'000
Fair value of L".I'l'l.[!lll.‘,lf.'ﬂ' assels 13,345 12,140
Prezent vahe of funded habalines (16,2490 (20,3206)
Net underfunding in fmded plans £2.904) (A, 186)
Present valoe of vunfunded liabilites: £ Z
Unrecognised past seevice cost 5 z
Met liability (2.904) (2,186
Mot in the batapce sheet
|ishilitics (2,004 (8, 186)
Assers . .

Net Hability (2,904) (8,186)

Analysis of the amount charged 1o the income and expenditure account

2011 2000

£7000 L'00

Cuzrent seevice cost 388 231
Pazt secvice costs iy -
Espected refurn on pension scheme assets (854 {5601
Interest on pension scheme liabilines 130 41
Al 512

£45T000 (2000 £231,0000 was charged to the operating surplus and C18Z0 (2000: £281,040
income) was charped o other finance costs
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

8. Employees [continued)

Amounts recognised in the statement of total recognised surpluses and deficits

Actuarial gain/(loss) in pension scheme seeopmised in STRED

Cumulative acmanal gaing/(Joss) recopnised in STRSID

Included within the actuarial gain for the current vear is {1.8million relating 1o the government's
anncwmncernent of on EEITI.IHL' 2000 that futare p-l.'n:ciml inceeases would be linked to CT'T as |:1r|rar:r-_=.|:d
to RI'L. The Group has recognised this amount i the STRSD in accordance with the Urgent
Issues Task Force (UTTF) Abztract 48 as the Directors consider that no constructive obligation
extsted prioe to this. As such the resulting gain has been accounted for as a change in actuarial

ASELMPHON.

Changes in present value of defined benefit obligations

Diefined benefit obligations at beginning of vear

Current service cost *

Inrerest cost
Contribunions by memnlxers
Acmarial {gains) losses
Past service cose *

Benefits paid

Dietined benefir oblipanons ar end of vear

* The past service cosr fipure for 2001 relates to £69.000 in
remrements,

2011 2010
£000 £ 000
5518 (4.679)

200 (3,300

2011 2010
L7000 L1000
203265 12 243
3ER 231
1,136 fdl
11 115
[4.5978) Rk L
] =
(703 (+42)
16,249 213206

respect of efficiency and other easly
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Changes in fair value of assets

Fair value of assets ar beginning of vear
Expected retum on assets
Conmbution by members
Contnbations by employer

Actuanal osses

Benefirs paid

Fair value of aszets at emd of year

Major categories of plan assets as a percentage of total plan assets

Eguites
Bomnids

Property
Cash

Actal return on plan assets

Acoml retam on plan assets

Amounts for the current and previous four periods are as follows:

Faar value of emplover assets
Present value of defned benedit
abliganon

Dieficn
Expenence guans (losses) on assct
Expenence guing/ {lodscs) on hakalanes

2011 2010
L2000 £1000
12,140 BA32
Bad il
i 115
403 395
540 2600
(703) (442)
13,345 12,1400
o1l 2011 2000 200
£ Y £ %
SL00E T2 BEG2 73
202 15 1,700 14
Bl 0 LT A
T34 7 a1 B
13345 T 12,140 e
2000 200%
L7000 £000
1.4¥2] 52200
by 2010 2005 2005 2007
£ D L'onn L0100 L°onn A O
13,345 12,140 HR52 11,185 1,550
(h6,249 (20320 {12,247 (12458) (3,000
(2,004 (2,180 13,590 (1,275 (2544
540 2l 73,2146) (23t [+
042 - {10151 Bl



Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Ts Interest receivable
Group Association
2011 200 20m 2010
L7000 £'000 £7000 L0
Imterest receivable and similar income 57 47 2 T
8. Interest payable and similar charges
Group Group
2011 2010
Interest on lbank loans and overdrabis 0335 9481
Finance leases %] i
R F Tnterest 11 14
Drisprrsal Proceeds func] interest b
Refinancing costs weitten off 13 {1y
9424 9562
Less: interest capitalised in housing properry costs (2400 (405)
0154 0,157

Capialsanon eate vsed 1o determine  the  finance  costs
capitalised during the period o5, (05,

g, Dperating surplus

Group Association
2011 2010 2011 2010
A£7000) £'000 L7000 L0040
Iz stated after charging:
Depreciation of housing propertics 2,084 1,930 :
Diepreciation of other tangible fixed assers 817 T 290 T
Operating lease charges:
- Land and buildings 3 3000 3
- Orther 475 i -
Audirors' remuneration:
- For audii services ol ({5 5 x
- for non-andin services
- tax compliance i 10 - :
- max advisory 21 33 -

- ather Z E =




Plus Dane Housing Group Limited a3

Financial Stetements for the year ended 31 March 2011

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

10. Surplus on sale of fixed assets- housing properties

Group Association
2011 2010 2011 2ir10
£000 £, 000 £1000 L1000
Drisposal proceeds 2,038 Y| - -
Carrying value of fixed asseis (1,443) (8,169) e a
595 1,512 - -
11. Tax on surplus on ordinary activities
Giroup Association

United Kingdom Corporation Tax 21 2010 2011 2000
L7000 £, ' 00 £7000 £000

Cormend Eaatioer:
Current tax on income for vear 104 475 - 174
Adjustment in respect of prior year (4300 {1 (14} i1
Total corrent tax charge/ (credit LY 474 (14} 173
Share of joint venture ax credit . 12 - ;
(326) 486 (14) 173

Dheferrea fascaiion:

Met ompinanon and reversal of tming

differences (20 (27 (26} ]
Adjusiment in eespect of prior year (631} - 13 -

Total tax {credit)/ charge a3 4349 (27) 178
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Financial Stotements for the year =ndad 31 March 2071

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

11. Tax on surplus on ordinary activities (continued)

The current tax charge for the vear vares from the standard mee of corporaton tax in the United
Fingdom of 28% (2010 - 258%), The differences are explained below:

Group Association
2011 2010 2m 2010

L1000 £ 000 L7000 L1000
Surplus/ {deficit) on ordinary activities
suldect o s 2737 134 (189 511
Surplus on ordinary acovides ar the
standard rate of corporation mx in the UK
of 28% (2014 - 28%) 772 612 (53) 143
Effects of:
Pension scheme contributions in excess of
charge - (2) - .
Expenses not deductible for ax purposes 114 a8 14 3
Capiral gain 13 63 -
Met charitable income (76T (1,492 -
Accelerared eapiral allowances 25 (104 : (3)
Depreciation in cxcess of capiral
allowances g7 . 32
Losses unlised (B2 - =
U'nrelieved tax Iosses 170 {331) :
Ohther 218 i 7
Impairment - (48) " .
Adjosmment in respect of [rrior vear (4300 i1 (14 {1}
Shorr term Ii1'|'|:||:|g differences {1416} 1,333 i =

(326) 474 (14 173




PR L

WHICTE

1HF'E

EFl
ukn

I T
el
TRILL

UTHYEE

UL

GIGELE

iy ]|

]
T
SHIE

I
fZrg'nh

(uash
197y

VS HE
T

=],

o

o GSEIRL
RN =
(1] Lk
M gk
- el
Gl L B iz
3 U
(gl 112'EE
L 7'
S 5zl
TLLRL ([T ko
S61'IT 1T
L £k
TEael
¥l
THIT
bLFT|
(oo T T EE
- ere'nl
[HL TP HLITHE
e o
* [Tl
Cal'ig SOk
0o ¥ ¥
R UL e[ Fenasg g plap
.-.ﬂﬁn.n n‘hu..u.l....r
Smmapq g

BeE L B IO T 1§ 1
T HY1 L [ [l S L Lk
e e gy 1N
: | S oy e LTl
mrad uy peapiuen sy
¥ = FUHHppY
i e o ey oy
TEwary Sy
EELR Lt LT Sy Ly 1y
g - : g Al
. - TR DR TR R SHETE
1% K FUHIPRY
I§ugd & [T LA T Tl
o Tivw L alug ey o
rurayy Smsnspy Eg
118 Ei1 1 1. HENE Jpy 11y
[T Rl R GEFL FIE Y2y 0y
1ty pagrrasdagy
X &Ll Tl LI el 1 oy
. [rsnlep o posapy
wl ¥ Tead 1 o)
£ wl g Uy oy
el pae munreraslagg
o vl | TRF' | [ HE YAregy B FYy
£ LA - sprsileigy
[l o) LTH = deak an po sl gy
_._._-_.r. g - ATRET PLLATE HHE] ) ErpEar
oHry s t RN
- Jluﬁ ﬂq._ ______—Ilﬂl_.i_ﬂ_“.l—..—.._uﬁ
L el i VT puady g ey
18y
0, F i, ¥ o, ¥
LG LIS E_._nh_. Hupa) anp pgg g s g
IjREHLN () PR

Faysnop [p|205 Hursnoyy [eaog-mopy mapasdisd Hupnegy
ipinkical

soanJadosd Buisnoyy - sjasse paxy sjgiGue) ZE

(panunNuod) SIUDWANEIS [EDUBUY I 01 SON]

LLOZ Yol LE papua Jealk aug) o) sjudiae)elg jEFouEu)y
POy iy dnosn fuysnopy aweq Snjd



Notes to the financial statements (continued)

12, Tangible fixed assets - Housing properties (continued)

The net book value includes (353,000 (20040: (6830000 i respect of asszets held under finance
leases. Depreciation charged in the year on these assets amounted o JE32000 (2000 131 0,

Soctal Housing Grang 2011 201 2010 2010
Revienue Capital Revetiue Capiral
Todal acoumulated SHG recevahile at 21 Alarch BT 2, R00 BGT T RN

The Group is unable to analyse the cost of housing land and buildings: between frechold and afher
temures, nor 15 it able to provide o reasonable estimate excepe ar cxcessive costs, [t is considered the
clfeer of this omission is sl lle.

Expenditure on works to existing properties: 2011 N (1]

£7000 L1000
Amiounts capitalised 3486 Dialk
Amounts charged to income and expendiure account 18,530 17,361

22,000 8,324
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

13.

Other fixed assets

Creovupr
Leasehold Frechold
Freehold office Momer  Fixtures &  investment
offices premiscs vehicles  equipment  properiies Total
£ D L£r0nn L0 L] L0 L1000

Cast ot valuation
At 1 Aprl 20140 6513 1321 kL] 3 11,445 2326
Addmons J - E K73 £ 43
[Haposals - (LT ! {331) [TR3) (1450
Treanafces 176 (176 - - 4 c
Blevaluations - - - TH) T
Ar 3] March 2001 0,580 1,174 FLod 3953 11,3860 25519
Depreciation
Ar U Apal 2010 14872 43 B 1,913 . 4.517
Charped for the vear 145 i - aH0 . #17
Iheposals - {167 - (324) * (591
Tramster 121 (1213 - = : H
Ak 31 Manch 200 2141 435 RO 1978 4,043
Met book value
Ar 3 Maech 2001 45448 T43 - 20H¥5 11,380 18,676
A 31 Morch 2000 4R W3z T 1,727 11,45 18408

The Group’s frechold investment properties were revalued as at 31 Maech 2011 The valuation was
undertaken by a qualified valuer (member of the Royal Insntute of Chartered Surveyors) who 1s an
emplovee of Plus Dane {Meeseyside) Housing Association Limited (a member of the Group). An
external valuation was last undertaken as ar 31 hMarch 2000, The valuation represents an asscssment
of the Marker Value (a8 defined in the Roval Institute of Chartered Surveyors” Valuation Standards)
of the individual properties. The surplus ansing of £L72millien has been credited to the revaluation
reserve, All other rangible assets are stated ar hustoncal cost,

In determining that the cumulative diminution in valee (as previeusly recognised i the financial
standards) 15 temporary cather than permanent, the directors have maken inte account general
movements in UK commerdial property values, regional variations on such movements and the
condition and position of each individeal property i the Geoup's portfolio. [t is the Growp's
intention 1o hold the properties for their long-tesm potennial and the direcrors consider that in che
medium to long term valees will secover to ar least those paid. In the context of holding the
propertics for long-term benefit the divectors have prepared cash flow projections that suppoet
their view that (based on current occupancy and vield levels) the treatment of the dimmution in



sl Statements for the yoar ended 39 March 2011

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

13, Other fixed assots (continued)

In reaching this conclusion the board drectoes m:kmm-]ml-gq: the current uncertzintes in the Uk
economy and that recorded reductons in value may ke lonper than anticipared to recover or
indeed may in part prove to be permanent In sueh an event part or all of the defice on the
revaluation reserve will be realised,

Had the frechold imvestment property oot been revalued, it wouold have been meluded on the
historical cosi hasis ai L7 00mmullion.,

Association
Fixtures,
fittings &
equipment
Cost
At 1 Apl Ta4
Addinones a4
Disposals [135)
At 31 Alarch 1463
Depreciation
At 1 Agril 350
Charge for the vear et
Dizposals (133
Wi 31 Macch 514
Met book value
Ar 3 March 2011 034

A 31 March 2010 430



Plus Dang Hous

Financinl

Statamen

ing Group Limited

ts for the year ended 31 March <077

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

14. Subsldiaries

As required by smanure, the financial statements consolidate the results of Plus Dane Housing Group
Limited and its whelly cwned and/or controlled subsidiary undertakings, as follows:

o

ooad

Plus Dane (Cheshire) Housing Assoctation Linnted
INelude Regeneration Comprany Limited;

Threehl) Property Investors Lanired

Dane Partmership Homes Limited

Plus Dane (Merseyside) Housing Assocation Limired

On 26 July 210, CD5 Housmg Associanon Limited, Greater Hormby Housing Aszociation
Limited and Mew Generation Housing Association Limited amalgamared, On this date the
activitics, assets and liabilie of these assocation became vested in a new ennty Plus Dane
{Merseyside) Housing Association Limited.  The activiies of these associations continue within
the amalgamated sociery.



Notes to the financial statements (continued)

15.

16.

Fixed asset investments

Group
Joimt venture
loan
£
Ar 1 Apnl 2000 1,105
Acldhissons a3
At 31 March 2oLt [,188
oy Juint
Association Venture
L7000
Asat 1 Apnl 2000 and 31 March 2011 113

Joint Venture Undertakings

The Assocition {and Group) holds a 225% miterest in the ordinary share capital of 2 joint venture
ondertaking, Circle Liverpool Limited. This company is incorporated m the United Kingdom and
rmanages and operates waste recycling in the Liverpool area.

The Group alsa holds a joint ventore investment i which it has a 5000 interest in the ordinany
share capital of TheeetllAustin Limited. The company iz incorporated m the United Kingdom and

it= prtncipal actvity 2 that of propresty mvestment and develapment,
h 3 P

The group has the following aggprepare interests in joant ventires,

2 2010

A0 L'000

Share of gross assets e B 2584

Share of gross liabilioes {3,500 (3.522)

Share of net habilines (1,057 (1138
Stock

201 2000

L0010 £'000

Copsummabies 102 3l
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

17. Properties for sale

Group

Ournight sale

Shared ownership

18. Debtors
Amounts receivable within one year

Rent and service charges
Less: provision for bad debts

Development sales debiors

Amounts due under finance leases
Loans o employees

Other debrors and prepayments

SHG eecervable

Corporation ax

Amounts due from group undertakings
Deferred tax

Amowunis receivable after one vear

Amonnt: due under fnance lepses

Amounts due under finance lease

2011 2010
£000 £1000
2 481 2
1,820 1,285
4,301 1,554
Group Association
201 2010 2011 2010
L7000 £'000 L1000 L0080
3,759 3,588 -
(2,000 (1,853
1,660 1,735
1,106 2585 .
482 462 - -
302 238 2 -
3314 3,466 345 U0
1,804 T4 - -
400 4 25 14
- - 192 a3l
T4 nl T4 il
UG B635 034 1196
5,980 01,10 -
13,116 14,654 (A% 1196

Ameonts due under finance leases amount o .{:[.I.-I'flll."q'E f 2L fﬁ.fﬂﬁﬂ“m}. Thiz TCPECEEnTS the
value of the finance lease ar 31 March 2011 granted to CLS Care Services over The Larches in
WlacclesBeld, The Lasches s a 90 vnir dementia and exiem eare 'l.'ill:lr___r{' which was L‘T:-r'r'||‘:-|1.:ll.x| and the
lease pranted m Cretober 2007, The lzase 1= for a period of 30 vears and the substance of the lease is
such thae it iz deemed o be a Gmance leaze and has been wreated mothe financial siemenis

aceordingly,
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

18.

19,

Debtors (continued)

Loans to emplovees

The loans to emplovees velate solely to the Group's car loan, eavel pass and course loan scheme,
the interest rate on all loans being between 3 per cent and 3.5 per cent per annum sepayable by
momthly instalmenes.

Drevelopment sales debiors

In aceordance with Financial Reporting Standacd 5 “Reporting the substance of transactions”

properties developed under a dght of pre-emption agreement are included in debtors where it is
consudered probable that the pre-emption right will be exercised.  The cost of properties is
£3,282.323 (2010 - £6,T10,320) less social housing grant of £2,181,661 {2010 — /4,125,527}, In the
event that the pre-emption nght is not exercised, the related properties would be teansferred o
tixed assets. The ner book value of the propertics is equivalent 1o the assets” value.

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Group Azsociation

2011 2000 2011 200

LD £'000 L7000 L7000

Loans [sec note 20 B16T 3518 - -

Finance lease creditor (see nore 20) 125 L3 - -

Treade creditors 3208 3163 370 Hi

Soeial [ h::lllhi.ﬂg Crepnt received in advance 1z ThE . -

Orthier grant eeceived in advance 150 M5 = z
Rent received i advance R 325 =

Orther tax and social securiy Hi0H 430 116 -

Corporation tax - 474 = 173

Accruals and deferred income {555 7,877 48 234

Recvcled Capital Grant Fund (see note 23) 39 1.013 . .

Amounts due to group undertakings : - 318 1,267

2073 20611 1661 2474
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

20. Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

Group 2011 2010
L1000 £'000

Bank loans 2MEE 214,594
Liss: issue costs (1,570 {1483}
232703 213415

Recveled Capital Grant Fund (see note 23) 049 1,222
Scheme dowries 287 el
Disposal Proceeds Fund 120 133
Other grants 325 3gd
Finance lease creditor 315 61l
234,894 216,060

Debt Analysis

Group 2011 2010

L0060 £1000
Dicht is repayvable as follows

In five or more years 214.H6 36,537
Berween mwe and five vears 13403 B.333
Between one and two vears 4.B79 ang
234,788 215,509
I|'|_ TEIE! \ﬂr it !eqh E‘,Erj—-: 5;‘.-:'5"
243,00 221 463

Honsing loans from lending instimtions are secured by specific charges on some of the Group's
housing propertics and foating charges over the Group’s assers and are vepayable ar mates of interes)
of beraeen 1.3% and 153% as lollows:

The bevel of andraan facilities at the vear end stands at £36.1 million (2000 £178 millson).

Finance Jeases are secured on the assets to which they relate.,
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

21.

22,

Disposal procesds funds

Crroupr 2011

L7000
At 1 April 133
Creant recycled upon relevant events 73
[ngerest accruged 2
Puechase, developrment of properties [
Balance at 31 March (doe after one vear) 120

(370

135

The fund has been used to purchase socml housing properties in accordance with permirted uses of

the fund,

Provizions for liabilities and charges

Dieferred tax
Grroup Association
2011 2010 2011 2010
£7000 L£'000 L1000 £'000
Arl April a83 ] {61} )]
Onginanon and reversal of dming
differences (2] (2N (2] 5
Prior year {631] = 13
At 31 March (74 583 (74 (61)
Deferred rax asset (nore 18) 74 (61} {74 (61)
Deferred rax liabilities - 4 ; :
Net deferred tax {asser)/liabiline 7y 383 ) Ly
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

23.

24,

Recycled capital grant fund
Group

Ar 1 Apnl

Additions to fund

Tnterest credited

Liilised in the year

At 31 March

Dhsclosed as:

Amount= falling due within one year
Amounts falling due after one year

Share capital

shaves of £1 each tssned and Eu]l}' |'|-:.'|.i.-IJ

At 1 Apnl and 31 MNaech

g
201 2010
£7000 L1000
27335 2387
LT 874
11 14
(1.065) FEITH
|, 268 27335
314 1,013
REL 1,222
1,268 2,235
2011 2010

The shares provide members with the right to vore at peneral mectings but do not provide any
rights ta dividends or distnbutions. The members" labiity is mited to £1 on a winding up of the

Association.



Notes to the financial statements (continued)

285, Reserves
Furnitwre
equipment Tenant
Revenue  Acquisition replacements  Revaluation invest Total
FesErvie reserve | Designated) reserve [ERCIVE 20m
£1000 £000 £1000 L4000 L0 £'000
Group
W1 Apnl (22410 1,157 1,076 (8,20 (8,208
Surphes for vear 3740 - 3,740
Transfers G ol | 6al R 2
Amesrtizateon of
HCLUISEINN FeRerve (21 (21
vetwanal pan on defined
benehins pension 0382 . 0ARE
Fxed azse1 revaluanon TS THE
At 31 March 10,010 1118 1,118 (6,756} ) 5 648
Association
Revenue reserve
2011 20110
£.1000 £
Arl Apnl i (125)
I:_.[:'l:“t-l.ﬂr:l.-"ﬁuri'ltus frar year (162} 333
A 31 March Hiy )
26 Mote of historical cost surpluses and deficiis
Group 2011 2010
£'100 IRULY
Reported surplus on ordinary actvities before maxanon 2757 284
Realisanon of properny revaluanon loss {631y
Historical cost surplus on ordinary  activities  before
taxation 21006 2184
Historical cost retained surplus for the vear 3,080 1,725
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

27.

Motes on the cash flow statement

a) Reconciliation of operating surplus to net cash inflow from operating activitica

Orperating surplus

FRS 17 adjustiment

Dieprectatson S amortisation

Share of |V surplus

Movement in stock and propertes held for sale
Movernent mn debroes

Movement in creditors

Met cash nflow from opemting activities

b) Reconcilimtion of net cash inflow to movement in net debis

Change in cash in the vear
Cash flowe from movement in investments
Cash fow from movement it dels

Blovement in net delat

Met debtat 1 Apnl

Met dele ar 31 Maech

2011 2010
£000 £'000
[1.532 140,605
{131} (481)
2 480 2635
(180) {4
1L 1,023

1,713 {1606)
(1,195 [.335
L3007 14,951

2011 2010

L7000 £'000

(7022 22
21,530 VAT
[28.553) {13,658
(208028) {193,339
(237 580 (219 4128



Notes to the financial statements (continued)

27.

28.

Notes on the cash flow statement [continued)

c) Analysis of changes in net debt

At At
1 April 31 March
2000 Cash flow am
47000 L7000 £,'000
{ash at bank and 1 hand 10,52 {7023 3950
Loans {219,.233) (ZLG3T) (2408T0)
Fimance lenses 747 L7 (bl
(219 980 (21,3300 (241,510
Change in net debt (20028 (28,352 {237.580)
Capital commitments
Group
201 2010
AL000 L1000
Capital cxpendimiee that has been contmeted for bue has not
been provided for in the Bonancial starements 5,344 176706
Capital expenditure that has been authomsed bur not yver
canteacted for 16,476 53,103
J4R25 10,779
The Geoup cxpects o finance the above commitments by
Social Housing Geant recervahle 11,103 10424
Loan faclines, shared ownetship sosceasing sules and other
trading cash flows 237 51,335
34,825 077
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

28, Commitments under operating leases

Asar 31 Aarch 2011 the Group had annual commitments under non-cancellable opemting leases as

frallenws:
m 2010
410040 4000
Land and buildings
Crperating Jeases which expire:
Less tham | vear - 3
Iy two 1o five years E 4
In five @ ten years 30X Jui
Gt 307
Oiher
Operating leases which expire;
Les=s than | vear 03 112
In owes g five veass 411 X
In Bvee tox fen yeass y 5
476 ) b

The Association has no eommirments under operating leases at 31 hMarch 2007 {2000k {mil),
30. Post balance sheet event

It 15 considersd that thezse have been no other eventz since the end of the Bnancial vear which have
had a marterial impact on the financial posiion of the Associaton or the Growp.






